

The version of 20180925

# Mach3 Ethernet Motion Controller EC500 User's Manual



Digital Dream CNC Co,. Ltd. www.ddcnc.com

## Contents

1. Brief Description of the EC500 Motion Controller	
2. Safety Notes 1	
3. Physical Installation of the device 2	
4. Controller EC500 Power Solution 3	
5. Wiring and Ports Description 4	
5.1 Ethernet Communication Interface to PC 5	
5.2 Stepper/Servo Motor Control Interface Connection 7	
5.3 Spindle Control Output Port 8	
5.4 General output interface 9	
5.5 Function Switch for MPG and Connection for MPG 11	
5.6 Serial extend port	2
5.7 Input Ports 12	)
5.8 Power Supply for Controller System and Power Supply for IO Port	;
5.9 LEDs Indicator for Power and communication with Mach 3 software	;
6. Mach 3 Configuration 16	;
6.1 PlugIn	;
6.2 Open Mach3 Software and connect with right PlugIn file	;
6.3 Check EC500 Plug-In in the Mach3 software	,
6.4 Motor Tuning and Setup	}
6.5 Port and Pins Setup	)
6.6 MPG Settings 22	)

### 1. Description of the EC500 Motion Controller Device:

For firstly of all we thank you for your interesting in our product and for reading this user's guide.

The EC500 is a high-performace external motion controller for Mach3, with ethernet interface, supporting standard MPG pendant. The device can communicate with a connection to a control computer's network. The network connection can be built with direct connection or via router/Swith devices.

The computer connects to the EC500 via a standard Ethernet cable. The cable may be shielded or unshielded.An advantage of the Ethernet compared to a USB is that the cable length maybe as long as 100 meters. The maximum length for a USB cable is 5 meters, and that is pushing it in a noisy working environment. Another advantages is that Ethernet uses transformers for coupling the data signals, which galvanically isolates the computer from the downstream electronics.

The device can be used to control machine tools with stepper or servo motor controls with pulse and direction interfaces; the controller can output a maximum of 460kHz stepping frequency for each axes and can work with upto 6-axes. The Controller is 3-6 Axis for user's options.

This user's guide describes how to establish connection between the device and controler computer, the device and stepper/Servo drives and spindle motor, how to setup the LAN network and the device for the communication. This document also describes the inputs and outputs, the electrical parameters and properties of the motion controller. It guides the users how to run the device with Mach3 software, and how to set the parameters in the software.

Here is the brief description for the device:

- 1) Motion control 3-6 Axis(X,Y,Z,A,B,C) for option,max frequency output 460Khz/Axis;
- 2) Main power supply 24VDC, Current should higher than 1A;
- 3) IO Power is 24VDC power supply input, current should higher than 1A;

4) IO Power is 24VDC power supply input, current should higher than 1A. (By the IO power supply, system already supply the power for IO ports. So no need the external power supply for IO port anymore.);

5) 18 opto-isolated digital input ports, 16 opto-isolated digital output ports;

- 6) 1 analog output port of 0-10V adjustable speed for spindle (can change to PWM output port);
- 7) ARM motion control chip;

8) Compatible with Standard MPG and also Digital Dream MPG

Accessories:

Beside the main products, in our package, there are accesories: 1pcs 1.5meter Ethernet cable.

#### 2. Safety Notes:

Moving objets like machine tool axes and automatical equipments can be very dangerous. Always make sure to keep all machines safety standards. Always install E-stop switches and the required safety equipments to your control system and make sure that the equipment controlled by our device meets all the safety standards.

Always keep the controller dry and away from falling chips and dust, protect the device from taint damage. Avoid conneciton mistakes, avoid high voltage damage, avoid operation errors.

Protect the device from direct intensive sunshine beams and from extreme temperature levels and from extra high humidity weather.

We cannot take the responsibility for any persernal injury and financial loss caused by any device failure or caused by following an error in this documentation.

## 3. Physical Installation of the device(Unit:mm)

The EC500 motion controller is with the sealed shell structure, there are 4pcs mounting holes around the controller. We can fix 4pcs 4mm diameter holes at the cabinet, and install the controller into the cabinet.



Picture 3-1 EC500 Front Appearance and size



Picture 3-2 EC500 Installation Dimensions

## 4. Controller EC500 Power Solution

The power supply solution in the field of the Industrial automation is always very complicated, there is a lot of the GND, now we descript the structure of the power structure as below:

The power structure as the Picture 4-1,Power supply input and Ethernet port share common GND, stepper control module,Input&Output module,Spindle control module and MPG Port share common GND, between the two sector there is photoelectric isolation. Inside of the board, there is GND as common-, no need to connect external power supply.



Picture 4-1 EC 500 Power supply structure

## 5. Wiring and Ports Description

The following drawing shows the main connections of our device. We will descrip one by one in next pages. Here are:

- 1 : Ethernet Communication Interface to PC
- 2 : Stepper/Servo motor Driver connection port
- 3 : Spindle Control Output Port
- 4 : Gerneral Output Interface
- 5 : MPG Port
- 6 : Functional Switch for MPG:Standard MPG or Digital Dream MPG
- 7 : Serial Extend Port
- 8 : Input Port:Limit/Home/Probe and so on
- 9 : IO Power Port
- 10 : Main Power Port
- 11 : Power and Communication LED Indicator





#### 5.1 Ethernet Communication Interface to PC

To setup the network on the computer side there are two ways for our device:

- 1) Setup with direct connection to a LAN network card;
- 2) Setup with connection via switch/router.

#### 5.1.1 Setup with direct connection to a LAN network card.

Firstly connect the EC500 controller to PC by the ethernet cable.

To Setup the connection with direct cable connection click on the name of the connection and on the pop-up window press the Properties button.Please note that for this action to work the user must have administrator rights inWindows account.Control Panel -> Network and Internet -> Network Connections. Pls remember to shut down the firewall of the computer before the connection.



Picture 5-2 EC500 Ethernet Commication Setup

Internet 协议版本 4 (TCP/IPv4) 属性	
Internet 协议版本 4 (TCP/IPv4) 属性 2 ×   常规 如果网络支持此功能,则可以获取自动指派的 IP 设置。否则,您需要从网络系统管理员处获得适当的 IP 设置。   ③ 自动获得 IP 地址(0) ④ 使用下面的 IP 地址(S):   IP 地址(1): 192.168.1.10   子网摘码(0): 255.255.0   默认网关(0):    ● 自动获得 DMS 服务器地址(B) ●   ● 使用下面的 DMS 服务器地址(C): 首选 DMS 服务器地址(C):	IP range from 192.168.1.1 to 192.168.1.255 Subnet Mask: 255.255.255.0
备用 DNS 服务器 (A):	

Picture 5-3 EC500 Ethernet Communication Setup IP No.

#### 5.1.2 Setup with direct connection via switch/router.

To Setup the connection with connection via a switch or router device click on the name of the connection and on the pop-up window press the Properties button.Please note that for this action to work the user must have administrator rights in Windows account.On the popup window find and select the 'Internet Protocol Version 4(TCP/IPv4)' row and click the Properties button.Find and click 'Obtain an IP address automatically' and system will setup the connection.

eneral Alternate Configuration				
You can get IP settings assigned aut this capability. Otherwise, you need for the appropriate IP settings.	omatically if y to ask your ne	our n etwoi	etwork : rk admin	supports istrator
Obtain an IP address automatic	ally			
Ouse the following IP address: —				
IP address:				
Subnet mask:				
Default gateway:				
Obtain DNS server address auto	omatically			
- Use the following DNS server ad	dresses:			
Preferred DNS server:				
Alternate DNS server:				
Validate settings upon exit			Adva	anced

Picture 5-4 EC500 Ethernet Communication via switch/router

#### 5.2 Stepper/Servo Motor Control Interface Connection



The device can be used to control machine tools with stepper or servo motor controls with pulse and direction interfaces upto 6-axes.

Motor	Driver Connection(5V)
PIN Mark	Description
XP+	X Axis Pulse Output +
XP-	X Axis Pulse Output -
XD+	X Axis Direction Output +
XD-	X Axis Direction Output -
YP+	Y Axis Pulse Output +
YP-	Y Axis Pulse Output -
YD+	Y Axis Direction Output +
YD-	Y Axis Direction Output -
ZP+	Z Axis Pulse Output +
ZP-	Z Axis Pulse Output -
ZD+	Z Axis Direction Output +
ZD-	Z Axis Direction Output -
AP+	A Axis Pulse Output +
AP-	A Axis Pulse Output -
AD+	A Axis Direction Output +
AD-	A Axis Direction Output -
BP+	B Axis Pulse Output +
BP-	B Axis Pulse Output -
BD+	B Axis Direction Output +
BD-	B Axis Direction Output -
CP+	C Axis Pulse Output +
CP-	C Axis Pulse Output -
CD+	C Axis Direction Output +
CD-	C Axis Direction Output -

Picture 5-5 EC500 Stepper/Servo Mark and description

#### 5.3 Spindle Control Output Port

As Picture 5-1 showed,No.3 terminal block is for Spindle control output. We define the interface from left are COM-,VSO,COM-,OUT1,OUT2,OUT3,OUT4,OUT5. They are Ground of output, Speed adjusting voltage, Ground of output, Digital output1, Digital output2, Digital output3, Digital output4, Digital output5.

Take Nowforeuer inverter as the example. Spindle control output and the inverter connection showed as Picture 5-6.X1 control spindle Clockwise RUN and STOP, AIN1 modify spindle's speed. if we need to control spindle anti-clockwise RUN and STOP, we need to connect X2 to OUT2.



Picture 5-6 EC500 Spindle Control Setup

VSO connects to Speed adjustment which defined by voltage 0-10V.

The relationship Max. Spindle speed and current spindle speed is as below:

VSO(Output Voltage)=10\*current spindle speed(S)/Maximum Spindle Speed(Max.S).

For example if we set the Max Speed is 24000,and we need the current spindle speed is 18000,then VSO=10\*18000/24000=7.5V.

The following picture 5-7 is the setting method of Max. speed in Mach3 software.



Picture 5-7 EC500 Spindle Motor Max Speed Setting

#### 5.4 General output interface

As the Picture 5-1 showed. the marked No. 4 is General output interface. This is a DB15 port.



Picture 5-8 General Output DB15 Pin No.

PIN No.	Mark	Definition
1	COM+	IO power +
2	OUT6	OUTPUT 6
3	OUT8	IOUTPUT 8
4	OUT10	OUTPUT 10
5	COM-	Common Ground for output
6	OUT13	OUTPUT13
7	OUT15	OUTPUT15
8	GND	Common Ground for output
9	VCCIO	IO power +
10	OUT7	OUTPUT 7
11	OUT9	OUTPUT 9
12	OUT11	OUTPUT 11
13	OUT12	OUTPUT 12
14	OUT14	OUTPUT 14
15	OUT16	OUTPUT 16



Picture 5-9 OUTPUT port internal structure

The general output interface has a built-in relay drive circuit, which can be directly connected to less than the 100mA relay. Reference Picture 5-10. for wiring with relay, using output 6(Pin No.2).



Picture 5-10 Solid Replay Connection

#### 5.5 Function Switch for MPG and Connection for MPG

As the Picture 5-1 showed, the marked No.6 is the switch for the options of two type MPG.For EC500, it can supply both standard MPG and NV-MPG which is made by our company Digital Dream. The Marked No. 5 is the interface for the connection of MPG.

The difference connection for Standard MPG and NV-MPG is from the Pin1 and Pin 2.Pls check the following table.Pls don't also forget when you need standard MPG turns the switch to STD, and when you need NV-MPG, switch it to NV. Then wiring the connections of MPG interface.

MPG TYPE	STD	STANDARD MPG)	NV(NVMPG)		
PIN NO.	Mark	Definition	Mark	Definition	
1	BIN	Select Axis B	T1OUT	OUT for serial port	
9	CIN	Select Axis C	R1IN	IN for serial port	



PIN No.	Mark	Definition
1	T1OUT	TXD of Serial port
2	VMPG	Power supply + for MPG(5V)
3	WHA+	A phase positive of the encoder
4	WHB+	B phase negative of the encoder
5	XIN	X axis select input
6	ZIN	Z axis select input
7	X100IN	100 rate select input
8	EP	Estop port
9	R1IN	RXD of Serial port
10	GND	Ground and common end
11	WHA-	A phase positive of the encoder
12	WHB-	B phase negative of the encoder
13	YIN	Y axis select input
14	AIN	A axis select input
15	X10IN	10 rate select input6

#### 5.6 Serial extend port

As the Picture 5-1 show, The marked No. 7 port is Serial extend port. The interface is mainly used for extended serial devices, such as IO extensions or HMI interface extensions.



Picture 5-11 Extended Serial Port

PIN No.	Mark	Definition
1&6	VCC5	5V Power+
2	RXD	Receive for serial port
3	TXD	Transmit for serial port
5&9	GND	Ground
4&7&8	NC	Reserved

#### 5.7 Input Ports

As the Picture 5-1 showed, Marked No. 8 position is for Input ports. They are the optical isolated Input interface. The Mark information from left to right is:IN1,COM-,IN2,COM-,IN3,IN4,IN5,IN6,IN7,IN8,COM-,COM+,IN9,IN10,IN11,IN12,IN13,IN14,COM -,COM+,IN15,COM-,IN16,IN17,COM-,IN18.

Internal structure see as Picture 5-12.

2 lines Proximity Switch/ordinary fretting switch / drawing see as Picture 5-13.

3 lines Proximity Switch connection Picture 5-14 and Picture 5-15, brown cable for Proximity switch connect with 12V,Black cable connect channel, blue cable connect with GND1. Pls note Only support NPN typel 3 lines proximity switch.



Picture 5-12 Internal structure of Input interface



Picture 5-13 Probe/Estop/ and other switch input connection



Picture 5-14 NPN 3 lines Proximity Switch connection drawing



Picture 5-15 NPN 3 lines Proximity Switch Connection Example

#### 5.8 Power Supply for Controller System and Power Supply for IO Port

As the Picture 5-1 show, The marked No. 9 port is the power supply port for IO port, and Marked No. 10 is for the power supply for Controller System. The access voltage range is 24VDC, and the power demand is not less than 20W. As shown in the picture, the left terminal is power - and the right terminal is power + , they shared one common GND. See the Picture 5-16 as below:



Picture 5-16 Power supply for Controler System and for IO Port

#### 5.9 LEDs Indicator for Power and communication with Mach 3 software

As the Picture 5-1 show, There are 3 Indicator LEDs for the controller power, IO Power and communicaiton with Mach3 respectively.

If the controller and IO power supply are configurated in right way, the Main Power LED and IO Power LED turn to Red.

The LED marked "CONN" represents the status of the communication with Mach3 software. If a link has not been established, the LED will not light.

## 6. Mach 3 Configuration

#### 6.1 PlugIn

When you purchase our product, we will supply a software package in the U-disk, which contains "DigitalDream" PlugIn, and the EC500 Manual.



In your computer which you will run the EC500 controller, you must already installed the Mach 3 Software, and now pls copy the PlugIn in to C:\Mach3\PlugIn.(If the user install the Mach 3 software in C-disk.)

#### 6.2 Open Mach3 Software and connect with right PlugIn file

Double-click the icon mach3mill 如 性症方式 .Enter into Mach3 software. Pop-up the plug-in box as below left picture.Then Click "Create Profile" and name it to "DigitalDream",click "Default profile values" and

confirm it by "OK"

Session Profile		Session Profile	
Current Profiles anc EC500 Ether	Create Profile Delete Profile	Create Profile Clone From Cnc EC500 Ether Screen4	S3 New Profile Name DigitalDream ✓ Default Profile Values Do not put any extension on the new profile
	Cancel OK	ОК	Cancel

After Click "OK", it will popup a window for the options of DLL file as below, pls choose "Digital Dream" as below. Then press OK. If you do not want to the dialog box to show again any more, select 'Don't ask me this again'. If connect successfully, Status bar will show "EC500 device is connected to your computer".

Motion Control Hardware PlugIn sensed!!	X
Your system is showing more than one contro Please pick the one you would like this profile	ol device e to use.
O Normal Printer port Operation.	
DigitalDream-DigitalDream-PlugIn-Ve	er-3.0b
C UC100-CNC-motion-controller-V2.14	46
C No Device	
_	
Dont ask me this again	OK

#### 6.3 Check EC500 Plug-In in the Mach3 software

Click config plugins in the software main menu, in the pop-down menu select 'PluginConfig', it will show the DigitalDream Plug-In is enabled:





#### 6.4 Motor Tuning and Setup

Mach3 CNC Licensed To: MaoA桶 北 社onar Config Function Cfg's View Wizards Operator PlugIn Control Help Select Native Units (Alt-2) Tool Path (Alt-4) Offsets (Alt-5) Settings (Alt-6 Ports and Pins Motor Turring General Config System Hotkeys Homing/Limits ToolPath Slave Axis Backlash Fixtures.... ToolTable... Config Plugins E ndle Pulleys. Safe\_Z Setup.. Save Settings

Click Main Menu 'Config', select the 'Motor Tuning' from its pop-down menu:

Then the screen display as below:



Mach3's Menu -> Config -> Motor Tuning (and Setup).

The Step Pulse and Direction Pulse fields are used for a Ethernet Port connection from your computer to your hardware.

The Steps per Unit, Velocity (Units per Minute) and Acceleration fields are critical for tuning your motors. The Steps per Unit is determined by your hardware for each axis. The velocity is the maximum speed you want your axis to move. The acceleration is the maximum acceleration rate your motors should run at (to prevent stalling or missed steps). This needs to be done for each of your axes.

Don't forget to save the data when you finished the data setting of every axis.For example, you click Z Axis, and save all the datas into the column, then you must click "SAVE AXIS SETTING", then the datas can be saved.

## 6.5 Port and Pins Setup

First, make sure you have your Motor Outputs assigned correctly (Menu -> Config -> Ports & Pins as below:

Encoder/MPG's Port Setup and Axis Selection	n Motor Or	dle Setu atpats	p Mill Options Input Signals Output Signals
Fort #1   Fort Enable:     0x378   Port     Entry in Nex 0~9   1     Kernel Speed   75000Kr ( 4500     © 65000Kr ( 75000kr ( 1000   80te: Software must be restar kernel speed is	rt #2 Port Enable: On278 Port Entry in Nex 0-9 F Pins 2-9 as imp 00Hz C 60000hz thz ted and motorz	08	HarNC Hode Mar CL Hode enabled Mar NC-10 Wave Drive Program restart Restart if changed Sherline 1/2 Pulse mov ModDas InputOutput Suppo ModDas PlugIn Supported TCP Hodbus support Event Driven Serial Coo

Then go to Right Lables: Motor Outputs and start to configurate as below:

Port Setu	p and Axis Sa	lection	Motor 0	utputs	Input Signal	la	Output Signal
Signal	Enabled	Step Pin#	Dir Pin#	Dir LowAc	Step Low	Step Port	Dir Port
X Axis	4	2	3	8	4	1	1
Y Axis	4	4	5	×	-1	1	1
Z Axis	1	6	7	×	4	1	1
A Axis	4	8	9	×	4	1	1
B Axis	4	0	0	x	×	0	0
C Axis	4	0	0	×	×	0	0
Spindle	4	1	0	*	4	]1	0

This page is to select the stepper motor control pins. Because Stepper motor control pins address are fixed by the controller board, So here only need to define the Pin address(No.s),we can define other parameters meter. To make sure the Z axis to the right direction(Up is '+',down is '-'), Z axis's "Dir low" should be set to" $\sqrt{}$ ".Other axes's should be set as the user's request.

Second, make sure that you have your home switches assigned correctly (Menu -> Config -> Ports & Pins -> Input Signals). While you could use a single input for your X, Y, Z, and A homes, it is much better to have them as separate inputs! Our EC500 controller has plenty of inputs available and it allows Mach to home all of your axes at the same time if you wish (although you typically have your Z axis home after the rest of your axes so you don't crash your head).

Fort Sete	coder/MPG's p and Axis Sel	ection	Spindle   Notor Outp	: Setup uts	Input Signal:	#111 Oy   0	tives utput Signal
Signal	Enabled	Port #	Pin Number	Active Low	Emulated	HotKey	<u>_</u>
X ++	4	1	3	4	4	65	E
х	×	1	0	*	×	0	
X Home	1	1	3	1	4	66	
Y ++	4	1	4	4	X	0	
Y	8	0	0	2	2	0	
V Home	4	1	4	4	8	0	
Z ++	4	1	5	4	×	0	
e Configur Es	ation Ports & coder/MPG' z	Pins	Spindle	Setup	WCE	N;11 Op	tians
e Configur Eo Port Setu	ation Ports & coder/MPG's p and Axis Sal	Pins ection	Spindle   Notor Outpo	Satup	- Write Inpot Signals		tisbs stput Signal
e Configur En Port Setu Signal	ation Ports & coder/MPG's p and Axis Sal Enabled	Pins   action     Port #	Spindla   Notor Outpo   Pin Number	Setup ats Active Low	Wriz Input Signals Emulated	Mill Op HotKey	tions stput Signal
e Configur Ex Port Setu Signal Z ++	ation Ports & coder/NFG's p and Axis Sel Enabled	Pins	Spindla   Notor Outpu   Pin Number   S	Setup ats Active Low	Input Signals Emulated	Nill Op HotKey 0	tians stput Signal
e Configur En Port Setu Signal Z ++ Z	ation Ports & coder/MPG's p and Axis Sal Enabled	Pins   eetion   Port # 1 1	Spindle Notor Outpo Pin Number S O	Setup ats Active Low	input Signals Emulated	8:11 0p   0v   HotKey 0 0	tians signal
e Configur En Port Setu Signal Z ++ Z Z Home	ation Ports & coder/MPG's p and knis Sel Enabled d d	Pins   action   Port # 1 1 1	Spindle Notor Outpo Pin Number S O S	Setup ats Active Low	inpot Signals Emulated	8:11 0p 8:11 0p 0 HotKey 0 0 0	tions stpat Signal
e Configun En Port Seto Signal Z ++ Z Z Home A ++	ation Ports & coder/MFG's p and kais Sal Enabled d d d	Pins   action     1   1   1   1	Spindla Notor Outpo Pin Number S O S 6	Setup ats Active Low 4 8 4	inpot Signals Emulated	HotKey 0 0 0 0	tions stpat Signal
E Configur En Port Setu Signal Z ++ Z +- Z Home A ++ A	ation Ports & coder/WPG's p and Axis Sal Enabled 4 4 4 4	Pins   aetion   1   1   1   1   0	Spindle Notor Outpu Pin Number S 0 S 6 0	Setup ats Active Low	Input Signals Emulated	ні11 0р Мі11 0р О ИоtКеу О О О О	tions stput Signal
e Configur En: Port Seto Signal Z ++ Z Z Home A ++ A A Home	ation Ports & coder/MPG's p and Axis Sal Enabled d d d d d d d	Pins   aetion   1   1   1   1   1   0   1	Spindla Notor Output Pin Number S 0 5 6 0 5 6 0 6	Satup ats Active Low 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Input Signals Emulated	Nill 0p     HotKey     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0	tions stput Signal
e Configur Eo: Port Setu Signal Z ++ Z Z Home A ++ A A Home B ++	ation Ports & coder/NFC's p and Axis Sal Enabled d d d d d d d d d d d	Pins   eetion   Port # 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Spindla Notor Output Pin Number S O S S 6 O 0 S 6 0 0 0	Setup ats Active Low 4 4 4 4 4 8 4 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	Input Signals Emulated	Bill 0p     Nill 0p     HotKey     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0     0	tions stput Signal

Here you can configure according to your actual needs the corresponding function. Optional Function include XYZABC 6axis's Upper and lower limit, XYZABC 6axis's HOME point. We set upper limit and home of XYZA to 3456 corresponding IN3/IN4/IN5/IN6 of the Controller board.

Signal	Enabled	Port #	Pin Number	Active Low	Emulated	HotKey	*
Input #3	×	0	0	×	×	0	_
Input #4	X	0	0	×	X	0	
Probe	4	1	2	4	x	0	8
Index	×	0	0	×	<b>X</b>	0	
Limit Ovrd	×	1	0	×	×	49	
EStop	1	1	1	4	×	0	
THC On	×	0	0	×	8	0	
	Pins 10-13	and 15 are ing	uts. Only these	5 pin numbers	nay be Automate	d Setup of Ir	aputs

Click "Spindle Setup" switch to the spindle settings page.

Fort Setup and Aris Selection	Motor Outputs	Input Signals   Output Signal
Encoder/MPC's	Spindle Setup	
<pre>telay Control Disable Spindle Rel Clockwise Output i Output Signal #'s Vlood Mist Control Disable Flood/Mist reDelay ist Output 4 2 Vlood Output 3 3 Output Signal #'s ModBux Spindle - Use Step/Dir as Enabled Reg 64 64 - Max ADC Count [16380</pre>	Motor Control W Use Spindle Motor Duty FWM Control Step/Dir Moto FMMBase Preq. S Winimum FWM B x General Parameters CW Delay Spin UP 1 S CCW Delay Spin DOWN 1 S CCW Delay Spin DOWN 1 S CCW Delay Spin DOWN 1 S	ecial Functions Use Spindle Feedback in Sync H Closed Loop Spindle Cont F 0.25 I I D 0.3 Spindle Speed Averagi econds econds econds econds c

Here we can configure the spindle rotates CW、 Reverse CCW、 Mist、 Flood pin, They have been configured as 1、2、3、4. Corresponding to output#1~output#4 in Figure4-11.output#1~output#6 in Output Signal Setup dialog can be Configured into these 4 signals. Here we only configure CW/MIST/FLOOD. CW is controlled by OUT1. MIST is controlled by OUT2. Flood is controlled by OUT3. Here we note correspondence between 2 page. Please select "use spindle motor output" if required PWM speed spindle. And select " PWM Control". Our PWM pin fixedly arranged on a special pin on Stepper motor setting dialog.

Here by our controller we already define all the Output Ports to Port No. 2.

#### All Output Ports are defined to Port No. 2.

Fort Setup and	Axis Selection	Noter	Outputs   Ing	ret Signals	Output Signals
Signal	Enabled	Port #	Pin Number	Active Low	
Output #1	4	2	1	4	
Output #2	4	2	2	4	
Output #3	4	2	3	4	15
Output #4	X	0	0	×	
Output #5	*	0	0	*	
Output #6	×	0	0	8	-
Charge Pump		0	0	*	
Charan Duma?	*	0	n	*	•
Pins	2 - 9 , 1, 14,	16, and 17 are of	utput pins. No other	pin	

Spindle setting corresponds to the output configuration

#### 6.6 MPG Settings

Firstly pls note the Picture 5-1 and the making No. 6, switch to the type of the MPG that you want, and connect the MPG pins in right way as the description of Page 11(Function Switch for MPG), then go to Mach 3 and Menu -> Config -> Config Plugins

Select Native Units Ports and Fins	DI (Ait-2) Tool Path (Alt-4) Offsets (Alt-5)	Setti
Notor Tuning General Config System Notkeys Moning/Limits ToolPath Sleve Axis Backlash Fistures ToolTable		REF ALL HOS
Config Flugins Spindle Pulleys . Safa 7 Satur		OFFLIN

Then the following windown will popup, click the "CONFIG" of the DigitalDream dll as following, there will be the selection windows for NV-MPG and standard MPG. The user have to select the right MPG type as their request.



After the MPG selection done, we will go to setup the the MPG at Mach3 Software. Go to Mach 3 and Menu -> Config -> Ports & Pins -> Encoder/MPG's as following.

ignal	Enabled	A -Port #	A -Pin #	B -Port #	8 -Pin #	Counts/	Velocity
ncoder1	X	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000
ncoder2	×	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000
ncoder3	×	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000
ncoder4	×	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000
APG #1	4	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000
APG #2	in the second se	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000
MPG #3	×	0	0	0	0	1.000000	100.0000

Then to active the MPG function, you can use the hand pulse, under the main page, click TAB to active MPG panel, refer to the following Picture:

